
 
 

 
 
 
 

Memorandum  
 
 
Date: September 25, 2025 
 
To: SOUTHERN NEVADA DISTRICT BOARD OF HEALTH 

 
From: Daniel Isler, PE, REHS, Environmental Health Engineer/Supervisor DI 

Daniel Burns, PE, REHS, Environmental Health Engineer/Manager DB 
Chris Saxton, MPH-EH, REHS, Director of Environmental Health KS on behalf of 
Saxton 
Cassius Lockett, PhD, District Health Officer 

 
 
Subject:   Variance request for an existing septic system, SNHD Permit #ON0015884, located 

at 3107 Ramrod Street, Las Vegas, NV 89108 to remain underneath the existing 
driveway. 

 
 

 I. BACKGROUND: 
 
David Tabacznski, Owner (“Petitioner”), is requesting a variance to obtain approval for a Tenant 
Improvement in accordance with Section 3 of the Southern Nevada District Board of Health 
Regulations Governing Individual Sewage Disposal Systems and Liquid Waste Management (“SNHD 
ISDS Regulations”) and to allow future building permits to be issued for the property located at 
Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 138-14-112-013, also known as 3107 Ramrod St., Las Vegas, NV 
89108 (“Subject Property”).  
 
Petitioner requests a variance from Section 3.7 of the SNHD ISDS Regulations, which states that 
a “Tenant Improvement approval request shall be denied if the existing individual sewage 
disposal system (ISDS) is in violation of any of these Regulations.” The existing septic system is 
currently in violation of Section 11.16 of the SNHD ISDS Regulations. 
 
Petitioner further requests a variance from Section 11.16, which states that “placement of any 
impervious covering, or any material deemed to be unacceptable to the Health Authority, over 
the soil absorption system is prohibited.” Petitioner would like to proceed with their Tenant 
Improvement approval request and allow the existing driveway to remain over the septic system. 
 
Petitioner states the following with regards to these requirements: 
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1. There must be circumstances or conditions which are unique to the applicant, and do not 
generally affect other persons subject to the regulation: 
 
“Our swimming pool far exceeds the minimum distance requirement between it and our ISDS.  
Our ISDS remains the same and functions properly as it did during the original install and home 
construction with the driveway in 1978.  There are absolutely no visual nor odor related signs of 
compromise regarding our driveway and leach field.  We had our ISDS inspected at the time of 
purchase in February 2020.  Findings are in good condition.” 
 

2. There must be circumstances or conditions which make compliance with the regulation 
unduly burdensome and cause a hardship to and abridge a substantial property right of 
the applicant, and the variance is necessary to render substantial justice to and preserve 
the property rights of the applicant. Please indicate in what manner compliance with the 
regulation would be burdensome or cause a hardship on your business or how the free 
use of your property may be affected (if economic factors are an issue, please include 
estimates regarding the costs that would be incurred by compliance): 
 
“We purchased our home in 2020 both for both the circular driveway and classic look.  Both remain 
unaltered since the original install in 1978, at the time of purchase our system was inspected and 
found to be in good condition and working properly.  This would greatly change the original design 
and classic look of our home/property.  And creating financial hardship to remove our driveway 
that has no and is no posing any issues for well over 40 years.” 
 

3. Granting the variance will not be detrimental or pose a danger to public health and safety. 
Please provide evidence that the variance request, if approved, will not adversely affect 
the safe and sanitary operation of the applicant(s) pool, spa, or food establishment: 
 
“We far exceed the minimum distance requirements per SNHD pool requirements.  Our ISDS tank 
is 50 feet away and the leach field is 60+ feet.  Both our ISDS and driveway have been in place since 
1978 (original construction), and both remain unaltered with our system working properly with 
absolutely no signs of compromise.” 

                                                                                                          
The Subject Property is depicted in Attachment E as Lot 26 of the recorded subdivision known as 
Rancho Meadows Unit #2, which was approved in 1978. The existing subdivision was created 
prior to the adoption of the current SNHD ISDS Regulations in 2009 and no changes to the Subject 
Property have been recorded since adoption of the current regulations. The existing septic system 
was approved on February 1, 1974. The existing single-family residence was constructed in 1978. 
 
Examination of the Clark County Assessor’s records and parcel genealogy show that the 
Petitioner is the eighth owner of the septic system and obtained the Subject Property in February 
2020. An analysis of the surrounding area shows that there are 84 permitted septic systems within 
a square mile of the Subject Property. There is one Las Vegas Valley Water District (LVVWD) 
production well, one LVVWD groundwater recharge well, and four quasi-municipal wells within 
a square mile of the Subject Property. The Subject Property receives water service from LVVWD, 
which receives water from the Colorado River. The nearest sewer connection point is 
approximately 440 feet from the Subject Property. 
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  II. RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The concrete driveway covering the leach field limits evaporation from the leach field and 
prevents oxygen from reaching the soil below the leach field, which is necessary for its proper 
operation. Additionally, vehicular traffic over the leach field adversely impacts the treatment 
capabilities of the leach field through soil compaction, which also causes oxygen deficiency. 
Oxygen deficiency in leach fields can cause premature failure of the leach field and can cause 
partially treated wastewater to be discharged into the groundwater, which may affect nearby 
wells and wells downstream of the property. 
 
Staff recommend DENIAL of the variance due to the Subject Property’s use of Colorado River 
Water, the presence of a LVVWD production well within one mile of the Subject Property, the 
age of the system, and because the driveway covers approximately 60 percent of the leach field 
area. If the Board of Health approves the variance, staff recommend approval with the following 
conditions outlined in Section III. 
 
           III. CONDITIONS: 
 
1. Petitioner and their successors in interest shall abide by all local governmental regulations 

requiring connection to community sewage systems. Use of the ISDS shall be discontinued 
and the structure it serves shall be connected to any community sewage system constructed 
in the future to within 400 feet of the Petitioner’s property line when connection can be made 
by gravity flow and the owner(s) are notified and legally required to do so. 
 

2. Petitioner and their successors in interest must abide by the operation and maintenance 
requirements of the most current SNHD regulations governing individual sewage disposal 
systems. 

 
3. The variance shall be in effect until the existing residential septic system is inactivated, 

removed, or if the property changes land use. Conversion of the existing septic system for 
commercial use will result in the variance becoming null and void.  

 
4. The applicant and his successor(s) must provide a copy of the variance to potential buyers as 

part of the disclosure process per NRS 113.  
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

A. Variance Candidate Application 
B. Justification Letter from the Petitioner 
C. Tenant Improvement Review Conducted by SNHD Staff (SR0055994) 
D. Final Inspection Report and Plot Plan for ON0015884 
E. Subdivision Map of Rancho Meadows Unit No. 2 
F. Public Notice 
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Attachment A: Variance Candidate Application (Page 1 of 3) 
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Attachment A: Variance Candidate Application (Page 2 of 3) 
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Attachment A: Variance Candidate Application (Page 3 of 3) 

 



Variance Request for 3107 Ramrod St. 
September 25, 2025 
Page 7 of 15 
 

Attachment B: Justification Letter from Petitioner 

 

 



Variance Request for 3107 Ramrod St. 
September 25, 2025 
Page 8 of 15 
 

Attachment C: Tenant Improvement Review by SNHD Staff (SR0055994) (Page 1 of 4) 
 

 

 



Variance Request for 3107 Ramrod St. 
September 25, 2025 
Page 9 of 15 
 

Attachment C: Tenant Improvement Review by SNHD Staff (SR0055994) (Page 2 of 4) 
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Attachment C: Tenant Improvement Review by SNHD Staff (SR0055994) (Page 3 of 4) 
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Attachment C: Tenant Improvement Review by SNHD Staff (SR0055994) (Page 4 of 4) 
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Attachment D: Final Inspection Report and Plot Plan for ON0015884 (Page 1 of 2) 
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Attachment D: Final Inspection Report and Plot Plan for ON0015884 (Page 2 of 2) 
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Attachment E: Subdivision Map of Rancho Meadows Units No. 2 
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Attachment F: Public Notice 

 


